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O VISION

To become a first-class medium to large bank in Hong Kong

O MISSIONS

Provide better service to our customers

Create higher value to our shareholders

Build up broader career path for our associates
Assume full responsibilities as a corporate citizen

O CORE VALUES

Integrity
Impartiality
Prudence
Creation
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CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“CCB (Asia)") is the
comprehensive and integrated commercial banking platform of China
Construction Bank Corporation ("“CCB") in Hong Kong. Currently, CCB (Asia)
has 35 service outlets in Hong Kong and offers a wide array of banking
products and services to customers, including personal banking services,
commercial banking services, corporate banking services, private banking
services, treasury business and cross-border financial services, etc.

For personal banking services, CCB (Asia) excels in providing customers
with comprehensive and diversified products and services through online
banking, mobile banking and branches. Our product offerings include
deposits, loans (including personal loans, credit card loans, residential
mortgage loans, auto loans, insurance financing and wealth financing),
foreign exchange and cash transaction services, as well as investment
services (including securities trading, fund investment, structured product,
bond and precious metal trading), comprehensive wealth management,
insurance (including life insurance, general insurance and insurance
broker), MPF referral services, RMB products, credit cards and safe deposit
boxes services. As expert on cross-border finance, CCB (Asia) offers our
customers an extensive array of cross-border wealth management and
financial products.

For commercial banking services, CCB (Asia) provides a diverse range of
financial products and services to medium-to-large corporations, mid-
caps and SMEs, both non blue-chip listed as well as private companies,
including bilateral commercial loans, syndicated loans, project finance,
property development loans, trade finance, commercial mortgage loans,
SFGS loans, corporate green finance solutions, profit tax loans, machinery
loans, FX products, as well as corporate wealth management, corporate
online account opening/lending services, integrated merchant acquiring
service, corporate online bill payment service, cash management and
deposit services. CCB (Asia) also capitalizes on the extensive branch
network of CCB to create synergy in businesses such as RMB cross-border
collaboration services including SBLC loans, LC discounting, RMB deposit,
remittance and foreign exchange services. To support the needs of small
and medium-sized enterprises for cross-border and inclusive financial
services, SME Centres are opened in major industrial and commercial
districts offering customer professional one-stop financial services.

For corporate banking services, CCB (Asia) provides comprehensive
banking services to Chinese conglomerates, large multinational enterprises,
Hong Kong blue-chip enterprises and local large and medium-sized
enterprises, including bilateral loans, syndicated and club loans, green
finance, M&A financing, trade financing, bond issuance, diversified fund
management services and deposit services, etc. CCB (Asia) also provides
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ABOUT US

comprehensive financing solutions for large state-owned enterprises and
Chinese mega-conglomerates, including credit enhancement for Mainland
enterprises’ overseas bond issuance, and cross-border businesses such as
entrusted payments, risk participation in export accounts receivable, bill
discounting and more. With the strong support from the parent company,
CCB (Asia) also leverages on Hong Kong's unique regional advantages
to fulfil its role as a "dual circulation” connection point. Focusing on the
strategic development of “go global” and “bring in” strategy, it seizes the
opportunities of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
interconnection policy and provides comprehensive cross-border financial
services to Hong Kong and Mainland customers in collaboration effort. In
addition, CCB (Asia)’s other business developments include supporting
the "Belt and Road” initiative and active participation in the Regional
Comprehensive Economic Partnership Agreement (RCEP), regional
construction and development in Southeast Asia and the Middle East
regions.

For private banking and private wealth services, CCB (Asia) provides
exclusive professional investment and financing services to high-net-worth
private banking and private wealth customers, including foreign exchange
trading, foreign exchange-linked deposits, structured investment/notes,
equity-linked investment/notes, principal-protected structured products,
global bond/certificate of deposit trading, securities trading, fund
investment, gold trading, securities margin financing/collateralized loans,
IPO financing services, insurance financing, leverage investments and
collateralized lending services.

For treasury business services, CCB (Asia) manages the bank’s bond
portfolio, issues bank debt instruments, carries out money market lending
and borrowing, bond repurchase, foreign exchange, interest rate and
derivative products proprietary trading and market making. Designated by
The Hong Kong Monetary Authority, CCB (Asia) is Primary Liquidity Provider
(PLP) for offshore RMB market and Eligible Market Maker for Exchange
Fund Bills and Notes (EFBNs) in Hong Kong. CCB (Asia) also provides
customers with treasury products sales and trading services including
foreign exchange, interest rates, derivatives and securities. Comprehensive
and integrated trading and financing solutions are offered to customers.
CCB (Asia) supports all-round capital market activities, including bond
issuance, syndicated loan, structured finance, project finance, mergers
& acquisitions, IPO, etc., requiring corporate trust and agency, global
depositary receipt depositary services, custodian and fund services. CCB
(Asia) acts as common depositary for the international clearing systems,
handling the settlement of bonds or other type of financial instruments.
CCB (Asia) has established extensive treasury business relationships with
bank counterparties, corporate and institutional customers. Flexible and
diversified investment, trading, financing and hedging products are also
provided to local and overseas customers.
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China Construction Bank Corporation (“CCB"), headquartered in Beijing, is
a leading large-scale commercial bank in China. Its predecessor, People’s
Construction Bank of China, was established in October 1954. It was listed
on Hong Kong Stock Exchange in October 2005 (stock code: 939) and
Shanghai Stock Exchange in September 2007 (stock code: 601939). At the
end of 2024, CCB's market capitalization was approximate US$212,427
million, ranking sixth among all listed banks in the world. CCB ranks second
in “Top 1,000 World Banks Ranking” in 2024 by The Banker magazine and
second in the “Top 500 Banking Brands” by Brand Finance.

CCB provides customers with comprehensive financial services, including
corporate finance business, personal finance business, treasury and asset
management business and others, serving 771 million personal customers
and 11.68 million corporate customers. Moreover, it has subsidiaries in
various sectors, including fund management, financial leasing, trust,
insurance, futures, pension and investment banking. At the end of 2024,
the CCB Group had 376,847 staff members and 14,750 operating entities.

The CCB Group fully recognizes the political significance of financial work
and its importance to the interest of the people, and conscientiously
upholds these principles in practice. It enhances high-quality financial
services for major national strategies, key areas and weak links, makes
significant efforts in the “Five Priorities”, i.e., technology finance, green
finance, inclusive finance, pension finance and digital finance, actively
supports the development of new quality productive forces, effectively
serves the real economy, and assists in high-standard opening up and
coordinated regional development. The CCB Group remains steadfast in its
core responsibilities and primary businesses focus, continuously enhances
its "Three Capabilities” in serving national construction, preventing financial
risks, and participating in international competition, proactively integrates
into the broader framework of further deepening reform comprehensively
and unswervingly promotes high-quality development.
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ABOUT CCB

VISION

Build a world class banking group with top value creation capability

MISSIONS

Provide better services to our customers

Create higher value to our shareholders

Build up broader career path for our associates
Assume full social responsibilities as a corporate citizen

CORE VALUES

Integrity, impartiality, prudence, and creation

PHILOSOPHY

Business concept: Market-oriented, customer-centric

Service concept: Customer first, detail-focused

Compliance concept: Proactive compliance by all employees, and
value creation through compliance

Risk concept: Steady, prudent, comprehensive, and proactive
Innovation concept: Encouraging, open, inclusive, and prudent
Talent concept: Respect talents, make a good use of talents, and
retain talents

STYLE OF WORK

Diligent, disciplined, truthful, and practical
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CCB (Asia) originated from

of Canton and its banking business was
quickly back on track. It soon became the
largest Chinese-owned remittance and
The Bank of Canton which foreign exchange bank in Hong Kong in
was established in Hong the post-war era.
Kong in 1912 by Chinese office was located at 6 Des later. In 2001, Hongkong & Shanghai
Voeux Road Central a L

Insurance Company Limited merged
with QBE Insurance (Hong Kong) Ltd, a
wholly owned subsidiary of QBE Group
and was renamed QBE Hongkong &

Shanghai Fire & Marine Insurance Co.
Ltd. became a subsidiary of The Bank of
Canton and was renamed Hongkong &
Shanghai Insurance Company Limited

businessmen Li Yuk-tong

and Look Pong-shan. It

was the first Chinese-owned bank in Hong Kong.
The headquarters was located at 6 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong, which is now the flagship
branch of CCB (Asia) .

Shanghai Insurance Limited.

B ERRITRIL3SBE (1947F)
Celebration of the 35th Anniversary of The Bank of Canton (1947)

W 1088 M 1993

1912 >4
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XBBEEERM - N ZERRITRMMEAR The Bank of Canton officially
7 AERABRPIEMEEEET - announced its cooperation with
he bank " ) Security Pacific National Bankin 1971, e ina T
T e. an expand§ : its business to Macau by In 1988, The Bank of Canton was s
setting up a subsidiary called Bank of Canton - ) . |
: . ) officially renamed Security Pacific
(Macau) , which was the first Chinese-owned )
) e ) ) Asian Bank.
financial institution registered in Macau.
AR EMIRITIER IR AR
The inauguration of Security Pacific Asian
Bank
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Security Pacific Corporation merged with Bank of America Corporation.
BRI Security Pacific Asian Bank became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of
Service counters of Bank of Canton in the past America Corporation and was renamed Bank of America (Asia) in 1993. In

2001, the Chinese name of Bank of America (Asia) was changed to align
with its English name.
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The inauguration of CCB (Asia) (2007)
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China Construction Bank (“CCB") acquired a 100% interest
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Business integration of CCB (Asia) and China
Construction Bank Hong Kong Branch.

The three buildings of CCB in Hong Kong were
officially inaugurated. CCB Tower in Central is
the head office of CCB (Asia) . CCB Centre in
Kowloon Bay is the mid-to-back office of CCB's
entities in Hong Kong. Located in Sai Wan,
CCB Hong Kong Training Centre is CCB's first
offshore training centre.

in Bank of America (Asia) from Bank of America and was

renamed China Construction Bank (Asia) ("CCB (Asia)").
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CCB (Asia) acquired AlG Finance (Hong Kong) and
was renamed China Construction Bank (Asia) Finance,
laying the solid foundation for expanding the credit
card and personal loan businesses in Hong Kong.

AIG]
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St o SEAEAN
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Signing ceremony of the acquisition of AIG Finance (Hong Kong)
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Hong Kong Business Integrati

CCB Centre Grand Dpening Ceremany
a

c @RI R
China Construction Bank.

BRITEBIRRERSRME

CCB Hong Kong Business Integration Ceremony

(REER)PERZRRTH
0 PERRETAR P
BRSBTS L
(From left to right) CCB Centre,
CCB Tower, CCB Hong Kong
Training Centre

CEmETEN 2

After five-year effort, the successful completion of “New Generation System Overseas
Integration Project” marked the launch of CCB (Asia)’s brand new core banking system
which powers the bank’s strategic transformation and business development in the future.

[F—RAEHNE D
HiL—fERE ]
Y ERIRE
“New Generation
System Overseas
Integration Project”
successfully
launched
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CCB (Asia) continues to increase its coverage and support for business development in key countries or
regions covered by the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP) Agreement and the Belt
and Road Initiative. In addition to bringing more regional development opportunities to the bank, it also
strengthens the capabilities of regional internal business collaboration.
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TO CUSTOMERS AND SHAREHOLDERS

In 2024, trade protectionism, divergence in monetary policies and geopolitical risks continued to reshape the global economy.
To continuously push ahead with high-quality development for organic growth, China deepened its supply-side structural
reform and facilitated an innovation-driven transition. Hong Kong, empowered by national strategies, has solidified the position
as an international financial hub with sustaining momentum for recovery. Against the backdrop of business environment
where strategic opportunities, risk and challenges co-existed, CCB (Asia) adhered to the philosophy of “Compliance first, steady
development and progress while maintaining stability” and scaled new heights in quality development with a record year in
operating results, underpinned by maintained operating stability, strengthened core businesses, improved operating quality
and efficiency, and optimized structure. Consolidated profit after tax for the year amounted to HK$5,920 million, representing
an increase of 47.8% from the previous year. Profit before impairment losses climbed 26.1% year-over-year to HK$7,249 million.
As at the end of the year, non-performing loan ratio was 0.32%, enhanced by 0.75 percentage points versus that at the end of
2023. At the end of 2024, all the regulatory ratios were maintained at sound levels and well above regulatory requirements,
constantly creating value for clients, shareholders and stakeholders and providing strong impetus to the long-term economic
advancement.

Developing a blueprint of coordinated regional development that pivot on national strategies. A steadfast champion of
the national financial strategies, we have made providing services under new development pattern of “dual circulation” as our
fundamental mission and have deeply involved in the regional economic integration. The coordinated development among
the region continued to pick up steam as the Bank continued to develop its customer operating capabilities of regions under
the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP), alongside acceleration of the establishment in new business areas
and efficient implementation of key projects. Focusing on the building of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
(GBA), application scenarios, including “Northbound Travelers Page” on CCB Lifestyle APP as well as “Cross-boundary Wealth
Management Connect 2.0”, have also been launched to innovatively offer integrated online and offline financial services, such
as cross-border payment, cross-border financing, and wealth management, for the purpose of building a premium life circle
across the GBA. In addition, we have signed the Memorandum of Understanding about supporting and participating in the
Northern Metropolis development with the HKSAR government as a joint effort to advance the infrastructure construction and
energy solution in the Northern Metropolis, establish a demonstration area for low-carbon development and promote stable
and sustainable economic growth in the region.

Fortifying Hong Kong’s position as a financial hub with cutting-edge digital technology. CCB (Asia) has been playing
an active role in the “early and pilot implementation” of various schemes. It has endeavored to enhance Hong Kong's
competitiveness in the global emerging financial fields under the framework of national development. As one of the
participating banks in Hong Kong for the Minimum Viable Product stage of Project mBridge by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (HKMA), CCB (Asia) has settled various cross-border transactions via central bank digital currencies (CBDC), breaking
new ground for the improvement in cross-border transaction efficiency and lowering of payment costs. To fully satisfy the
increasing demand of individual wealth management amid the digital financial era, we have persisted in the adoption of
emerging technologies to drive the new retailing businesses and forged ahead "Digital Wealth 2.0". We have been active in
exploring the e-Payment era through the participation in a series of studies of CBDC, including the e-HKD Pilot Programme
of HKMA and e-CNY pilot in Hong Kong. Our pursuit of innovation and change can likewise be evidenced by our profound
involvement in the HKMA's Ensemble Sandbox testing as well as innovative development of Hong Kong's tokenization market,
effectively promoting the advancement of the financial services for digital assets in the city and fortifying its position as an
important asset and wealth management center in the world.
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Cultivating the soil for business development to set the direction for high-quality growth. In 2024, we centered
around our main businesses to better comprehensive financial service capabilities and build up future growth drivers with
visionary framework. We became a primary market maker of HKD and offshore Renminbi HKSAR government bonds under
the Infrastructure Bond Programme and Sustainable Bond Programme launched by the HKSAR government. First-ever in
CCB Group’s history, we issued Panda Bond (bonds denominated in RMB and issued within mainland China by overseas
institutions) on the China Interbank Bond Market, furthering the Group's breakthrough and long-term development in cross-
border RMB businesses and making contributions to the strategy of RMB internationalization. To help protect the environment,
as a financial player, we have stepped up the involvement in green finance to increase green loan balances and the scale of
green bonds underwritten each year. We put emphasis on upgrading consolidated inclusive, extensive, and high-frequency
services capabilities and enriched the offering of cash management product spectrum, significantly enhancing the capacity
of transaction banking services. We continued to follow through on the strategy of integrated operation across the Group
and have led various high-profile syndicated loans, pushing back the boundaries of multiple structured financing projects.
We marched on the path of fintech self-reliance and have completed migration of overseas businesses onto distributed core
banking system, thus maximizing the synergy between head office and branches.

Shoring up stable operation capabilities with the groundwork of risk management and compliance. Firmly believing
the indispensability of lean management to high-quality development, we have practiced it across customer management,
business process, risk control and resource allocation to lay a foundation that consists of more agile and efficient operation. We
have enhanced the coordinated risk control across “three defense lines” and in turn maintained a balance between growth and
security. We have operated within our risk appetite and strengthened preventive management and control with a focus on the
resolution of risks in key and critical areas. During the year, regulatory indicators such as credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk were
within our control. We have kept up with the momentum in high-quality development for years with constant enhancement in
operating efficiency and value.

Relentlessly fulfilling the mission of responsible finance and expanding the reach for people livelihood'’s service. CCB
(Asia) has stood side by side with Hong Kong for over 110 years, remaining true to our original aspiration. The Bank is steadfast
in leveraging financial strength to foster social development and inclusion. We continuously enhance our inclusive finance
efforts, with four inclusive finance branches deeply embedded in local communities, providing robust support for the growth
and development of small and medium enterprises in Hong Kong. Actively participating in various social, cultural, and public
welfare activities, we organized over 40 volunteer events throughout the year, sharing the dream of public welfare through
small acts of kindness. Deeply practicing the concept of “mobilizing the employees, customers and institutions for charity and
integrating business with charity”, the Group has developed a new charity model that includes cross-border collaboration,
blossoming with hope on the path of philanthropy. The Bank has, for the first time, established a scholarship program,
dedicated to building a larger reserve of financial talent for Hong Kong society. It also continues to support Hong Kong's
cultural and sports events through title sponsoring the “CTA 1000 CCB (Asia) Hong Kong Open”, empowering the development
of cultural and sports industries with finance, promoting integration in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area,
and contributing to the acceleration of building a strong sporting nation.
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Looking ahead to 2025, the global economic landscape is undergoing profound adjustments, with increasingly complex and
volatile development. The long-term positive trajectory of China’s economy remains firm as supported by stable conditions
and fundamentals. Hong Kong, leveraging its unique position of “enjoying strong support of the Motherland and being closely
connected to the world,” will continue to play a pivotal role in serving national strategies and global resources allocation.
As the flagship of the Group’s overseas operations, CCB (Asia) will closely align with the national development strategy of
“dual circulation”. On top of addressing the needs of diversifying Hong Kong's economic portfolio, it will focus on areas such
as regional collaborative development, RMB internationalization, cross-border financial services, green transformation, and
technological innovation. We will strengthen the interconnected development of the mainland and Hong Kong capital
markets, enhance the Group's competitiveness in the global arena, and chart a new chapter of high-quality development. At
this critical juncture of building on the past and forging ahead, CCB (Asia) will continue to reinforce its strategic role as a pivotal
point, leveraging Hong Kong's strengths to meet the nation’s needs. We are committed to contributing financial strength to
consolidate and elevate Hong Kong's position as an international financial center and to better blend it into the master plan of
the country’s development.

Last but not least, we would like to extend our sincere gratitude to the head office and the members of the Board of Directors
for their strategic guidance and the visionary insights, which injected impetus into the high-quality development of the Bank.
We shall also extend our gratitude to the management and all employees of the Bank for their concerted efforts and diligence,
which has laid a solid foundation for the sustained and steady growth of CCB (Asia)’s business. Furthermore, we should thank
our customers for their trust and support over the years, and the community and partners for their invaluable assistance.

Zhang Jun
Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, March 21, 2025
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ZHANG Jun

LI Qianxin (appointed on Decermber 13, 2024)

KWOK Pui Fong Miranda s

AUYEUNG Rex Pak-kuen ags, p

FOK Glenn

LEUNG Kwok Wai Jimmy

LEUNG Wing Lok

WANG Bing (cessation of appointment on Novernber 22, 2024)
LI Min (cessation of appointment on October 22, 2024)

FENG Xi |a| (cessation of appointment on May 28, 2024)

SECRETARIES

ZHAO Shuo Amy (cessation of appointment on February 7, 2025)
WANG Zi (appointed on February 7, 2025)

FOI’]g Chin Man Ada (appointed on February 7, 2025)

In 2024

Vice Chairman, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Secretary to the Board of Directors & Company Secretary
Secretary to the Board of Directors

Company Secretary
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In 2024

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

ZHANG Jun

Vice Chairman,

Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhang is the Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of China
Construction Bank (Asia) (appointed with effect from March 26, 2018), and is the Chairman
of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors and a Member of the Strategy and
Corporate Governance of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the
Dean of CCBU Hong Kong Institute and Non-Executive Director of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited since December 14,2018 and March 4, 2021 respectively.

Mr. Zhang joined China Construction Bank in 1988 and has over 30 years of banking experience.
Before taking over his current position in March 2018, he was the General Manager of China
Construction Bank New York Branch since 2013. Mr. Zhang worked in the International Business
Department of Shandong Branch of China Construction Bank for many years, and later served as
Deputy General Manager of China Construction Bank Singapore Branch, Frankfurt Branch and
was in charge of the project team for setting up the Ho Chi Minh City Branch. From September
2008 to April 2013, he served as the Deputy General Manager of China Construction Bank Hong
Kong Branch.

Mr. Zhang is currently the Executive Director of The Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association,
Director of The Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Charitable Foundation, Vice President of Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers, Vice Chairman of Chinese Banking Association of Hong Kong and
Adjunct Professor of HKU Business School, The University of Hong Kong. He was the Vice
Chairman of China General Chamber of Commerce — USA (CGCC) and the Chairman of CGCC
Finance Committee.

Mr. Zhang is a Senior Economist. He graduated from Shandong University in 1988 with a
Bachelor's Degree in Operations Research and obtained a MBA from University of Hull, United
Kingdom in 1999. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charterholder.
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In 2024

| Ms. Li has served as Non-Executive Director of the Bank since December 13, 2024 and is a
Member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Bank.

Ms. Li has been appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director of CCB International
(Holdings) Limited (“CCBI") since November 2019, and is the Chairman of the Decision-Making
and Strategy Committee as well as a Member of the Audit Committee; the Risk Monitoring
Committee; and Personnel and Remuneration Committee. She was Vice Chairman and Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of CCBI from December 2018 to November 2019. She was Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of CCBI from June 2016 to December 2018. She was Head of Strategic Projects

Department of CCBI from October 2015 to June 2016. She was Deputy Head of Strategic
Projects Department (main in charge) of CCBI from May 2013 to October 2015. During Ms.
Li's tenure at CCBI, she successively served as the Deputy General Manager from November
2014 to May 2016, Vice Chairman from May 2016 to May 2019 and Chairman from May 2019
to November 2021 of CCB International (China) Co. Ltd. Also, Ms. Li was concurrently served as
Associate Director of the Direct Investment Department and Joint Deputy General Manager of
CCB International Asset Management Co. Ltd from August 2011 to March 2013 and from March
2013 to June 2016 respectively.

Prior to Ms. Li's joining of CCBI, she was successively served as Analyst, Senior Manager and Vice
President of Executive Office of CITIC Capital (Hong Kong) from July 2008 to August 2011 and
Analyst of Special Investment Department of CITIC Capital (Beijing) from June 2007 to July 2008.

Currently, Ms. Li is concurrently served as Vice Chairman of the Council of the Belt and Road
General Chamber of Commerce, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Charitable Foundation
Limited, Vice Chairman of Chinese Securities Association of Hong Kong Company Limited,
Member of the Steering Committee of the Research, Academic and Industry Sectors One-plus
(RAISe+) Scheme.

Ms. Li obtained a Bachelor of International Economics and Trade from Northwestern
Polytechnical University in 2003 and a Master of Science in International Management from
University of Reading in 2005.
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In 2024

Ms. Kwok is a Non-Executive Director and a Member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the
Risk Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Ms. Kwok has been serving the Bank for over 37 years. Prior to her retirement in April 2022,
she was the President and Executive Director of the Bank. Prior to July 2013, when China
Construction Bank reorganized its Hong Kong business by integrating CCB (Asia) and the Hong
Kong Branch, she had been the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank.

Ms. Kwok's banking career began in 1984 as a Management Trainee of Bank of America,
Hong Kong. In 1996, Ms Kwok was transferred to Bank of America (Asia) (renamed CCB (Asia)

KWOK Pui Fong Miranda in December 2006). Ms Kwok served consecutively in various departments and had been
P the Chief Risk Officer and Chief Credit Officer of the Bank. She has extensive experience and
knowledge in banking and financial services industry, especially in the areas of business

Non-Executive Director

management and strategy, capital markets, corporate governance, risk management and

sustainable development.

Ms. Kwok is the Honorary Advisor of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, Chairman of
Process Review Panel for Securities and Futures Commission, Director of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Council and Member of the Council of City University of Hong Kong, Risk
Management Committee of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, and the Standing
Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service.

Ms. Kwok graduated with an Honorable Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Economics and
Management from The University of Hong Kong in 1984, and graduated with honors from
the Graduate School of Retail Bank Management of the Consumer Bankers Association in the
United States in July 2001. In addition, she was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2022.
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| Dr. Auyeung has been appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank with
effect from September 8, 2018 and is the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors and a Member of the Risk Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Bank.

Dr. Auyeung is the Non-Executive Chairman of MTR Corporation Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 66) and a Director of
MTR Academy (HK) Company Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of MTR Corporation Limited).
He is also an Advisor to Nippon Life Asia Pacific (Regional HQ) Pte. Ltd (a company incorporated
in Singapore). Currently, Dr. Auyeung is also the Vice Chairman and an Independent Non-
| Executive Director of C-MER Medical Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 3309).

Dr. Auyeung has over 40 years of experience in the insurance industry in Canada and Hong
Kong. Prior to his retirement in June 2017, Dr. Auyeung was Chairman — Asia of Principal
Financial Group Inc. (‘PFG"), a Fortune 500 company, responsible for PFG's overall businesses
in Asia. During his time with PFG, Dr. Auyeung represented PFG and its member companies
across Asia in building and expanding PFG's relationship with clients, joint venture partners and
strategic investors, and assisting in business development across all product lines of PFG.

Dr. Auyeung also actively serves the public sector and is currently a Board Member of Bo
Charity Foundation (Food Angel) and a Convenor of the Advisory Committee of the Jockey
Club Community eHealth Care Project. In addition, he is a Member of the Board of Advisers
of Healthcare Dispute Resolution Centre Limited. Dr. Auyeung also is an Ex-officio Member of
the Election Committee under Engineering subsector in his capacity as the Chairman of MTR
Corporation Limited.

Dr. Auyeung was previously an Independent Non-Executive Director of HSBC Provident Fund
Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited, the Chairman of Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy Sub-
committee on Stakeholder Coordination and Collaboration, a Member of the Independent
Review Committee on Hong Kong's Franchised Bus Service, the Chairman of the Council of
Lingnan University and an Observer of the Independent Police Complaints Council Observers
Scheme. He was a Member of the Board of Directors of the Investor and Financial Education
Council (“IFEC") under the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC") and the
Chairperson of the Financial Education Coordination Committee of IFEC under SFC from 2018
to 2024 and from 2019 to 2024 respectively. Dr. Auyeung was also a Member of the Public
Shareholders Group, a Member of the Committee on Investment-Linked Assurance and Pooled
Retirement Funds of SFC and a Member of the Investment Sub-committee of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong from 2000 to 2007, from 1999 to 2006 and from 2001 to 2020 respectively.

Dr. Auyeung holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies (Urban and Regional Planning) Honours
Degree from the University of Waterloo, Canada. He was awarded an Honorary Fellowship
by the City University of Hong Kong in 2013 and Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration by the Lingnan University in 2020. In addition, he was appointed a Justice of the
Peace in 2018 and was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2022.
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®

FOK Glenn
Independent Non-Executive
Director

LEUNG Kwok Wai, Jimmy

Independent Non-Executive

Director

Mr. Fok has been appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank with effect
from June 18, 2019 and is a Member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the
Risk Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Fok is a Senior Consultant of Moelis & Company Asia Limited, a leading global independent
investment bank listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Fok served as a Board Member
of the Financial Services Development Council from January 2018 to January 2024 as well as a
Member of the Board of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority from October 2018 to October
2024. Mr. Fok currently serves as a Member of the Board of Governors of The Hong Kong
Philharmonic Society Limited. From November 2022, Mr. Fok was appointed as a Committee
Member of Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme.

Mr. Fok was formerly a Vice Chairman and Managing Director of UBS, responsible for senior
client coverage. During his 32 years of investment banking and corporate finance career, he led
many landmark initial public offerings, domestic and cross border mergers and acquisitions,
complex debt and equity issuances, corporate restructuring and re-organization, and strategic
financial advisory transactions. Prior to joining UBS, Mr. Fok was the Head of Investment Banking
Services and Joint Head of Corporate Finance of Schroders Asia Limited. He had served as a
Member of the Board of Bank of America (Asia) Limited, the Securities & Futures Commission
Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts, the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee, the
Board of Trustee of United College of the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and the Council of
The Education University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fok holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemistry from Occidental College and Master of
Business Administration from University of Southern California.

Mr. Leung has served as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank since August 4, 2022
and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and a Member of the Risk
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Leung is a Professional Accountant with over 38 years of Public Accountancy experience
in Beijing, Shanghai, Hong Kong and London. Mr. Leung was PwC China’s Financial Services
Leader and a Member of its global banking leadership team. He led a team of about 5,000
PwC professionals in financial services industry and provided services of organizational
transformation, assets restructuring, risk management, recapitalization and listing, performance
enhancement, accounting advisory and financial statement audits. He was admitted into PwC
Partnership in Hong Kong China in 2000 and in Mainland China in 2013 respectively. Prior to
joining PwC, Mr. Leung earned his professional experience in KPMG China, Hong Kong China
and United Kingdom from 1984 to 2000, he admitted into KPMG Partnership in 1997.

Mr. Leung had been focusing on auditing, initial public offering (“IPO”) transactions and financial
due diligence during his career. He was specialized in auditing and IPO transactions for banking
institutions in China and Hong Kong China. Mr. Leung was Engagement Partner for audits of
China Construction Bank Corporation from 2011 to 2015, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
from 2004 to 2010 and from 2014 to 2018, and Agricultural Bank of China Limited for 2020.
He was also the Quality Review Partner of China CITIC Group Corporation, Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd., and Postal Savings Bank of China Co,, Ltd. from 2015 to 2020.
In addition, Mr. Leung also led the H Share IPO Services on Bank of Communications Co,, Ltd.
in 2005, China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited in 2009, Huishang Bank Corporation
Limited, Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. and China Zheshang Bank Co,, Ltd. in 2013 and Luzhou
Bank Co,, Ltd. in 2018.

Mr. Leung obtained Professional Diploma in Management Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1984. He obtained his professional qualifications of Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountant and Chartered Management Accountant in 1989 and Chartered
Global Management Accountant in 2012.
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In 2024

Mr. Leung has served as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank since December 5,
2023 and is the Chairman of the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors, a Member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Leung has worked as financial management and senior management positions in several
banks and listed companies in Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange for over 35
years, and has extensive experience in the local banking industry and the financial management
field.

Mr. Leung currently is a Non-Executive Member of Board of Governors of The Hang Seng
LEUNG Wing Lok University of Hong Kong and a Non-Executive Director of Hang Seng School of Commerce.

Independent Non-Executive He has been appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Bank of China Group

Insurance Company Limited and BOC Group Life Assurance Company Limited since August

Director

2024 and July 2023 respectively. Mr. Leung is also serving as a Member of the Finance

Committee of the Scout Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Leung served as a Senior Advisor of Hang Seng Bank Group from September 2022 to March
2023, after he retired from the position of Chief Financial Officer and Alternate Chief Executive
of such group since 2009. Prior to serving the above positions, Mr. Leung worked as Deputy
General Manager, Financial Management of Bank of China (Hong Kong); Senior Manager,
Corporate Finance of Hang Lung Properties Group; Senior Manager, China Business, Corporate
Banking and Financial Control of Hang Seng Bank Group; Assistant Director of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange; Head of Finance of UniCredit Bank Austria AG; Financial Manager of Australia
and New Zealand Banking Group and Senior Auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Leung
was formerly the Council Member and Treasurer of the Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF.

Mr. Leung holds qualifications, including Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Chartered Secretaries and Chartered Governance Professional of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute, United Kingdom,
Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom and
Chartered Professional Accountant, Canada.

Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor of Social Sciences (Management) Degree from The University
of Hong Kong in 1984, Master of Science, Data Processing Degree from University of Ulster
in Northern Ireland in 1992, Bachelor of PRC Law Degree from Peking University in 1997 and
Master of Science in Electronic Commerce and Internet Computing Degree from The University
of Hong Kong in 2002.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

As of March 21, 2025

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

ZHANG Jun Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
WU Jian Deputy Chief Executive

QlJun Deputy Chief Executive

Daphne WAT Wing Kam Deputy Chief Executive

YANG Yunchao Deputy Chief Executive, Chief Risk Officer

Annie CHEN POONIS
Tiffany LIU Huifen
Jason JIAO Jingshan
WANG Zi

Justin WONG Hon Yu
GUO lJingtang

Alias LEUNG Wing Yin
George FAN Qiufeng
Grace CHOY Yuk Shun
Rita MAN Yuet Ching
FU Ling

Marvis FOK Ka Yan
Charmaine LI Ching Ming
Vincent CHO Wai Sing
Jimmy LI Linfeng
ZHENG Yugeng
Stanley WU Ching Luk
SU Lin

Jivyali

Minda LIU Man
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Deputy Chief Executive

Chief Retail Banking Officer, Head of Private Banking Division

Chief Operating Officer, Head of Fintech Division

General Manager, Head of Executive Office

General Manager, Head of Finance Division

General Manager, Head of Human Resources Division

General Manager, Head of Risk Management Division

General Manager, Head of Credit Division

General Manager, Head of Internal Audit Division

General Manager, Head of Legal & Compliance Division

General Manager, Head of Corporate Banking | Division

Deputy General Manager, Deputy Head of Corporate Banking Il Division
General Manager, Head of Institutional Banking Division

General Manager, Head of Commercial Banking Division

General Manager, Head of Transaction Banking & Capital Market Division
General Manager, Head of Treasury Division

General Manager, Head of Consumer Banking Division

General Manager, Head of Digital Banking Division

General Manager, Head of Operations Division

General Manager, Head of Data Management Division
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Better Chief Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CCB Nominees Limited
20/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong (SAR) Hotel Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB Securities Limited
18/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB Properties (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB (Asia) Trustee Company Limited
G/F, 6 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

CCB (Asia) Insurance Broker Limited
23/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong

JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

Diamond String Limited
11/F, Lai Sun Commercial Centre, 680 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
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Outstanding Award for Green and

Outstanding Award for Green Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan Facilitator
and Sustainable Loan Facilitator Sustainable Loan Facilitator
o . (Integrated Property Development Industry)
(Telecommunication Industry) (Hotel and Commercial Real Estate) f .
- Largest Single Sustainability-linked Largest Single Sustainability-linked Loan - Largest Single Social and
Loan Sustainability-linked Loan
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Sustainable Bond Lead Manager Sustainable Bond Issuer
(Confronting Climate Change Themed (Confronting Climate Change Themed
Financing Project of Banking Industry) Financing Project of Banking Industry)
- Visionary Green Bond Framework - Visionary Green Bond Framework

BEmERER
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
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HKET Excellence Awards 2024 Corporate Brand Awards of Financial Services Awards of
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border (Private Banking) - Outstanding Inclusive Finance - Awards of Excellence (Private
Award Banking)
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Hong Kong Economic Times Hong Kong Economic Journal
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2024
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The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business
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- Best Digital Wealth
Management Services

BELeREHE BREBR (&#01)
The Hong Kong Council of Social Serwces Hong Kong Police Force HKO1
REHFET 105 PHBESHEE
Good MPF Employer 10 Years Best All-round MPF Employer

BHMEAEEEEER
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Rooted in Hong Kong for over a century, CCB (Asia) always upholds its unwavering commitment to serving Hong Kong, and
is committed to building the city via finance and collaborating with different sectors in the society to embrace co-prosperity
and inclusivity with Hong Kong. In 2024, while actively pursuing business growth, CCB (Asia) embraced the Group’s notion of
“serving the common good with finance”. Striving to implement inclusive finance in Hong Kong, CCB (Asia) deeply integrated
corporate social responsibility into its business strategy, actively promoted economic, environmental, and social sustainability.
Through corporate contribution, talent development and employee engagement, it dedicated itself to giving back to society
and collectively building a better Hong Kong.

BUILD A GO BEYOND WELL WORK ENVIRONMENT WITH EMPLOYEES’
WELL-BEING AND DEVELOPMENT AS PRIORITY

CCB (Asia) has been dedicated to building a sound corporate culture, enhancing employees’ sense of belonging to the  ——
Bank and promoting their physical and mental health and personal development. In recent years, under the theme

of "Building a Go Beyond Well Work Environment”, CCB (Asia) has been active in creating an equal, caring, inclusive,

and dynamic work environment. In 2024, CCB (Asia) continued to launch new initiatives under this theme, offering a
number of employee benefits tailored to their daily lives. Even more, in celebration of the 70th anniversary of the parent

bank CCB, over 100 engaging activities were organized for our employees, enhancing their sense of belonging as a
member of the CCB Group. Moreover, a number of staff recognition activities were held, including the Best 10 Employee
contest, instant award program (“CARE Program”) and long service awards, etc. to recognize employees’ outstanding
performance and empower them to unleash their self-value at work, fostering collaborative development of both the

Bank and the employees.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Regarding talent development, CCB (Asia) continuously implemented the “Mentoring Program” to provide care and support
to our new joiners and inherit our corporate culture. In order to assist employees in keeping pace with time, and enhancing
their skills and learning new ones, aligning with the industry trend, the Bank provided comprehensive training for employees
under the theme of "Future Bank Capacity Building”. Green finance is one of the key directions for the future development
of the banking industry. To broaden employees’ understanding and application of green banking, the Bank has particularly
invested more training resources in green and sustainable finance to further enhance employees’ professional capacities. In
2024, CCB (Asia) rolled out the “Internal Accreditation Mechanism”. Through comprehensive upskilling and reskilling, it focuses
on nurturing talents in fintech, cross-border wealth management, green and sustainable finance, as well as the business
development for the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP), providing employees with a systematic platform
to equip themselves with necessary skills for the future.

{ . a ” 1 ”
"“l'l!lﬂ!'!lllllll
| \ - el o

b s :

° PERIRT(EH) B ERAT 2020558 (41—




CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

PROMOTE SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT WITH THE POWER OF FINANCE CARE FOR
THE COMMUNITY THROUGH PARTICIPATION

CTA1000 CCB (Asia) Hong Kong Open 2024

CCB (Asia) is committed to empowering the development of culture and sports sectors in Mainland China and Hong Kong
with the power of finance and promoting the integration in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. In 2024, the
Bank was the title sponsor of “CTAT000 CCB (Asia) Hong Kong Open 2024", a national-level tennis tournament, for the second
consecutive year to support the holding of the nation’s highest-level professional tennis tournament in Hong Kong. As an
iconic stop for the CTA Tour, this event not only promoted the interconnected development of “Sports + Culture” and “Sports
+ Tourism" between Mainland China and Hong Kong, but also contributed to the establishment of Hong Kong's vibrant image as
a center for major international sports events.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CCB (Asia) New Alliance Volunteer Team heeds feedback from the society and engages in community caring

Since its establishment in 2016, the CCB (Asia) New Alliance Volunteer Team has been committed to uniting colleagues to
actively participate in community services, injecting fresh and positive energy into society. The volunteer team heeds feedbacks
from the society, understands the needs of grassroots communities and responds with proactive initiatives. In view of the
increasing prevalence of financial frauds in recent years, the volunteer team leveraged its financial knowledge and expertise and
collaborated with local organizations to launch the “Financial Literacy Seminars by Chinese Enterprises” project, visiting schools
and communities to educate students, the elderly and others on preventing fraud, in a bid to foster a strong defense against
scams. By sharing recent cases of real-life scams, not only did the volunteer team help students enhance their ability to identify
scams at early ages, but also reminded the public to stay vigilant in daily life to protect their financial assets with the growing
popularity of internet and mobile banking. Furthermore, during traditional festivals, the volunteer team visited the grassroots
and the elderly in the communities, showing them the support and company from society with their warmth and care.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Hong Kong Red Cross “Home-based Chronic Disease Management Service for the Elderly (CDME) and
Healthy Ageing in the Community” Volunteer Project

Over the years, CCB (Asia) has been cooperating with a number of local major charitable organizations. In 2024, the Bank further
collaborated with Hong Kong Red Cross as the first enterprise to carry out volunteering service projects. Apart from regular
blood donations, a one-year project “COME and Healthy Ageing in the Community” was launched. Referred by the Hospital
Authority, the service targeted individuals aged 65 or above with chronic illnesses. Services under the project included home
visits, care calls and follow-ups, free haircuts and community outreach activities. These diversified daily care activities provided
the elderly with continuous support and care from society while improving their quality of life.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

SUPPORT YOUTH EDUCATION AND INHERITANCE TO CULTIVATE FUTURE
ELITES

CCB (Asia) Scholarship

CCB (Asia) is committed in nurturing financial talents. Through the establishment of the CCB (Asia) Scholarship and the  ———
collaboration with The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, the Bank encourages tertiary students in Hong
Kong to explore key topics in the financial industry from a forward-looking perspective. The scholarship endeavors to
establishing a reserve of financial elites for Hong Kong society and enhancing the city’s long-term competitiveness
as an international financial center. In addition to academic achievement and internship experience, the scholarship
selection emphasizes students’ insights and innovative thinking in the areas of fintech, green finance and inclusive
finance, facilitating academic exchange and professional growth. The first scholarship application received enthusiastic
responses from outstanding students with diverse backgrounds, who showcased the potential and ambition among
students in Hong Kong. With the scholarship, the awarded recipients will continue to sharpen their professional
knowledge and skills, with aspirations to pursue careers in and contribute to the development of Hong Kong’s financial
industry in the future.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Joint Growth Mentorship Program

CCB (Asia) collaborated with Fresh Fish Traders' School, a local primary school, to launch the Joint Growth Mentorship Program,
under which the Bank mobilized employees to serve as volunteer mentors to provide English learning support and guidance to
the students, igniting their interest in learning. Mentors meticulously designed a series of engaging and creative English courses
with activities, such as interactive games, singing and art, reading inspiration sessions, making language learning enjoyable and
enabling the students to learn in a relaxing atmosphere where learning is combined with good fun. Through the program, the
Bank aimed to build mutual trust and encouragement between the students and the mentors, transforming English learning
from a dull and stressful task into an exciting journey. The activities were not only designed to help students gradually overcome
their anxiety about learning English, but also allowed the mentors to deeply appreciate the value of mutual growth throughout
teaching activities.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Support education in remote areas in Mainland China Engage in cross-border public welfare activities

In addition to local education, CCB (Asia) also actively supports education in remote areas in Mainland China. For years, ——
the Bank has donated teaching materials to schools in these areas to reach its helping hands to the underprivileged
communities. In 2024, CCB (Asia) donated computers, books, sports equipment and other supplies to two impoverished
schools in Jinggangshan, Jiangxi Province, improving local educational infrastructure to meet diverse teaching needs.
Furthermore, the Bank organized the CCB Hope Primary School Hong Kong Exchange Program 2024, inviting students
and teachers from Jinggangshan Primary School for their first-ever visit to Hong Kong, one of the world’s international
financial centers, to broaden their horizons. In the exchange program, students and teachers not only participated in a
simulated banking setting to deepen their understanding of future careers, but also participated in a series of cultural
explorations and delved into Chinese civilization. A highlight was the visit to the Legislative Council where students
from a local school were also invited to foster exchanges between the two regions. The exchange program provided
rural students in Mainland China a valuable opportunity to broaden their international exposure, inspiring them to set
ambitious aspiration and laying a solid foundation for their future growth.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

INCORPORATE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT AND BUILD A GREEN
BRAND IMAGE

CCB (Asia) spares no effort in integrating green concepts into its overall strategic planning, operation and management, as well
as corporate culture. In terms of sustainable finance development, the Bank has been actively responding to the “dual carbon”
targets of our country and HKSAR in recent years, continuously exploring and promoting a comprehensive green transformation
of economic and social development. It has been vigorously developing green deposits, green loans, green bonds, and other
green financial services, establishing a professional green finance team to support corporate clients in implementing green
transformations, and playing a pioneering role among its Chinese peers in the financial sector to establish green operation plans.
CCB (Asia) is also the first retail bank in Hong Kong to adopt Morningstar ESG Ratings, incorporating ESG elements into fund
investments. In recognition of its excellent performance in green finance, the Bank was honored by the HKSAR government as
a “Carbon Neutral” partner. During the year, CCB (Asia) was further recognized by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency,
receiving eight awards in the Hong Kong Green and Sustainable Finance Awards 2024, making it the most honors won bank in
the awards, demonstrating its leading position in green finance and further consolidating its green brand image.

Additionally, supporting environmental protection and nature conservation is also an essential part of CCB (Asia)’'s commitment
to promote sustainable development. In 2024, the Bank collaborated with Ocean Park Hong Kong to present a new ecological
conservation exhibit, Croco Land, providing a permanent, safe and comfortable habitat for Passion, a female crocodile found
in Pat Heung, Hong Kong. The launch of Croco Land not only protected biodiversity but also provided an important platform
for the public to understand and appreciate ecological conservation. CCB (Asia) hopes to raise public awareness of protecting
Hong Kong's natural ecology and encourage more people to participate in environmental protection, collectively making
contribution to sustainable development.

Az
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) is a
licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 28/F, CCB Tower, 3
Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) are the provision of a range of banking and
related financial services through the Bank's branches and subsidiaries.
Other particulars of the Bank’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating segments
is set out in Note 20 to the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
and the state of the Bank's and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 261.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2024 (2023: HKD Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no movements during the
year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, charitable donations made by the Group amounted to
HKD720,455 (2023: HKD932,632).
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CRTHEZE - AHEER CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT, MEDIUM TERM
B3 NOTE AND DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

RAREEAR - AEBHTARKEIEITES  During the year, the Group issued RMB3 billion panda bond. The bond
5 BAUARKESE - HIR B35 - B is denominated in RMB, has a maturity of 3 years due in 2027, bears a
2027 BIH - BT FFIERAE205%  FFAME  fixed interest rate of 2.05% per annum payable annually. No certificates of
—R e MAFEER  AITUWEIEITIMAFR  deposit and medium term notes were issued by the Bank during the year.

FENAHEER -
BRTHMERTE OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS ISSUED

RAEEAN  RITEITTUATITALME  During the year, the following instruments were issued by the Bank to
CERME(EERS)) (RUEIBRE HIETE —  fulfil the Loss-Absorbing Capital Requirements as set out in the Financial
RITR)MRBIN(FE628BE )R RUEEEL A Institutions (Resolution) (Loss-absorbing Capacity Requirements — Banking

BRER o Sector) Rules (Cap.628B).
Consideration
Amount Issued received
BITHE WEL AR E
k=] Class UsD'000 USD'000
(F%mT) (F=%=T)

RETHABHMIERIERREIN  Undated non-cumulative subordinated
—MERTA additional tier 1 capital instruments 2,000,000 2,000,000

DRETHEMERT EFESHNGEE KA Details of the other equity instruments are set out in Note 44 to the

ffzta4 o consolidated financial statement.
REH R EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

RAREFR » AT AR EMIRIEC(A  During the year, the Bank has not entered into any equity-linked
A BEREVHBINFBe22DS ) HIEZ 4 agreement under Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Cap 622D).
Wik ©
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors of the Bank

The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of the
report were:

ZHANG Jun (Vice Chairman)
KWOK Pui Fong Miranda Jp
AUYEUNG Rex Pak-kuen Gs, Jp
FOK Glenn
LEUNG Kwok Wai Jimmy
LEUNG Wing Lok
LI Qianxin
(appointed on December 13, 2024)
WANG Bing
(cessation of appointment on November 22, 2024)
LI Min
(cessation of appointment on October 22, 2024)
FENG Xilai
(cessation of appointment on May 28, 2024)

Pursuant to Clause 111(3) of the Bank’s Articles of Association, Ms.
Kwok Pui Fong Miranda and Mr. Leung Kwok Wai Jimmy shall retire
from office and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Bank for three
years up to the date of the AGM of year 2028. Ms. Kwok Pui Fong
Miranda and Mr. Leung Kwok Wai Jimmy will offer themselves for re-
election.

Pursuant to Clause 111(3)(iii) and 111(4) of the Bank's Articles of
Association, the term of office of Mr. Fok Glenn will be expired at the
forthcoming AGM of the Bank. The Bank considered that Mr. Fok has
performed his duty of loyalty and care with exceptional diligence
during his services and fulfilled the independence and fit and proper
requirements of director of the Bank, and intended to propose the
Shareholder appropriately extends the term of office of Mr. Fok.

The extension of term of office of Dr. AUYEUNG Rex Pak-kuen for
an additional year was approved at the AGM of year 2024, and
will be expired at the forthcoming AGM of the Bank. The Bank
considered that Dr. Auyeung has performed his duty of loyalty and
care with exceptional diligence during his services and fulfilled
the independence and fit and proper requirements of director of
the Bank, and intended to propose the Shareholder appropriately
extends the term of office of Dr. Auyeung.

Other remaining directors of the Bank shall remain in office for the
ensuing year.

RERLIRIEST () RARAT 2024555 (51—



EEEHRE
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BEE ) DIRECTORS (conminuep)

(@) ATITHES(#E) (@) Directors of the Bank (continued)

FREE  EREEREEREEED Mr. WANG Bing, Mr. LI Min and Mr. FENG Xilai ceased to be Non-
BIF20245F 11 228 ~ 2024510822 H executive Director of the Bank on November 22, 2024, October 22,
N2024F5 A28 BB EARTTIENITE S 2024 and May 28, 2024 respectively. Mr. WANG Bing, Mr. LI Min and
PG o TIobdE - EREAERFEDT KA Mr. FENG Xilai confirmed that they have no disagreement with the
FERREEZSWEEMNERTE - Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the Bank needed to be
BUWEEMAR 2 SEERSATTIRE brought to the attention of the shareholder of the Bank.

FF o

(b) FITHBRAEIMNES (b) Directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries
FRAMEEAREER  RELLERE
FEAT—RENBAREZESRE - 77
WMEARFRANEE ARES BIEEN

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. ZHANG Jun
is also a director of a subsidiary of the Bank. Other directors of the
Bank's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this report

HepgEEmT include:
raE4 WU Jian
B k= WAT Wing Kam
PREERA CHEN POONIS Annie
Eeas LIU Huifen
BR3ZEX (B4 © Joseph) CHENG Tat Kin (Alias: Joseph)
R LAI'King Lun
EST LEE Sui Man
g2 SIT Pui Chan Rita
RN WU Ching Luk
HAGE WU Man Tik
(CE YEUNG Sze Wai
TH WANG Zi
(FR20245F 8 H26 HIEZ(E) (appointed on August 26, 2024)
£ LI Angela Lai Yeung
(FA2025F 2R 11 HEZRME) (appointed on February 11, 2025)
-3 YE Lin
(F20245F8 H26H BE(E) (resigned on August 26, 2024)
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EEEHRE
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or joint venture company was a party, and
in which a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or joint venture company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to hold any interests in
the shares or debentures of, the Bank or its specified undertakings or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that every director, secretary or other
officer of the Bank shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Bank against
all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him in the
execution and/or discharge of his duties and/or the exercise of his powers
and/or otherwise in relation to or in connection with his duties, powers
or office. The Bank has maintained appropriate directors and officers’
liability insurance which provides personal protection for the directors
and management against any financial loss arising from the potential
exposures associated with supervising or managing the Bank.

COMPLIANCE WITH HONG KONG BANKING
(DISCLOSURE) RULES

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2024 comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Hong Kong
Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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ELTED AUDITOR

TFAMBERROELKETEEBAER © The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young
DEBMGEETAIFAE SR REEEIEE  who shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
£ o BB K &HEN BB AN EBAZSED A resolution for re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the

RBREREERAFHKERG LIRS - Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
EEEEMm By order of the board of directors

REE ZHANG Jun

BIEFER PITEFFRITR Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
HE 0 20253 A21H Hong Kong, March 21, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

/ Ernst & Young TGRS AT Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888

27/F, One Taikoo Place BRBABREBITHR Fax {8E: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road Kty —E2718 www.ey.com
E,i Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the members of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 261, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at December 31, 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS conminuen)

Key audit matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowances for Expected Credit Losses on Advances to
Customers

Refer to material accounting policies in Note 4(c)(xv), and
disclosures on credit risk in Note 8(a) and Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, gross advances to customers
amounted to HK$277.9 billion, representing 53% of total assets;
and the expected credit loss ("ECL") allowances for advances to
customers amounted to HK$2.2 billion, representing 91% of the
total ECL allowances for financial instruments.

The assessment of credit risk and the measurement of ECLs
are required to be based on unbiased and probability-
weighted possible outcomes, and reasonable and supportable
information at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected loss
impairment model to recognise ECLs in respect of advances to
customers. Significant management judgement and estimates
are involved in the development and the application of
complex models and the choices of inputs in the calculation of
ECLs, including:

- segmentation of financial assets according to credit risk
characteristics

- criteria to determine whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred

- determination of the ECL stage, estimation of probability
of default, loss given default, exposure at default and
discount rates

- selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios
and their probability weightings

For individual impairment allowances, management judgement
is required to determine the probability of multiple exit or work
out scenarios and estimate the impact that the uncertainties
observed in current economic environment, including
heightened risk associated with the Mainland China and Hong
Kong real estate sector, may have on these exit strategies, the
time to collect, and collateral valuation.

In view of the significance of ECL allowances and the
management judgement and estimates involved, the ECL
allowances for advances to customers are considered a key
audit matter.

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s credit
management policies and procedures, including
measurement and recognition of ECLs. We read the minutes
of the Group’s Risk Management Committee, Credit
Committee, and Special Assets Management Committee
meetings, to understand ECL model governance and
monitoring and the approval of the internal credit risk
ratings and assumptions used in the ECL model.

We performed walkthroughs of credit management
processes and evaluated the Group’s impairment
methodology, including management judgement in
respect of the segmentation of portfolio, the criteria on
significant credit deterioration and the measurement
approach of expected credit losses. We assessed the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of the key controls
over the systems and processes of credit assessment, loan
classification, stage classification and calculation of ECL
allowances. Our testing of the loan impairment processes’
controls included, amongst others, an evaluation of the
governance in respect of the selection and probability
weightings of economic scenarios and the controls over
data input.

For the ECL allowances as at 31 December 2024, we
performed testing on the completeness and accuracy of the
data used in the ECL calculation by comparing the individual
loan data to the relevant data source on a sample basis;
evaluating the calculation logic and data processing; and
recomputing for a sample of management’s calculation of
the ECL allowances.

We engaged our modelling specialists in evaluating the
impairment methodology and model enhancements.
We assessed the appropriateness of the ECL model used
by management in determining impairment allowances,
including changes made to forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios, and evaluated the key parameters and
assumptions adopted in the model. The key parameters and
assumptions included ECL stages, probability of default, loss
given default, exposure at default, and probability weighted
economic scenarios.

In addition, for the corporate lending portfolio, we adopted
a risk-based sampling approach to perform loan review
procedures, with focus on high-risk industries including the
Mainland China and Hong Kong real estate sector, in order
to assess the appropriateness of management’s credit risk
rating and ECL staging by reviewing the borrowers’ financial
performance, valuation of collateral and other available
information. As part of our loan review procedures, we
selected samples of credit-impaired loans and advances
and assessed their stage 3 ECL allowances by evaluating the
timing and means of realisation of collateral, the forecast of
recoverable cash flows, the viability of recovery plans and
other credit enhancements.

We also evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Group's key controls related to
disclosures on credit risk.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS conminuen)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of financial instruments

Refer to material accounting policies in Note 4(c)(xvii), and
disclosures on fair values and the valuation hierarchy of financial
instruments in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value amounted to HK$156,829
million and HK$23,779 million, respectively. In connection
with this, HK$70,477 million and HK$229 million of the Group's
financial assets measured at fair value were categorised within
level 2 and level 3, respectively; and all the Group’s financial
liabilities measured at fair value were categorised within level 2.

The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine the
fair value of financial instruments that do not have quoted
prices in active markets. These valuation techniques, in
particular those that include significant unobservable inputs,
involve management using subjective judgements and
assumptions. Valuation results can vary significantly under
different valuation techniques or assumptions.

Financial instruments that do not have quoted prices in
active markets are classified as level 2 or level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy. In view of the complexity and significant
management judgement involved in the determination of fair
value for level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, the valuation
of financial instruments is considered as a key audit matter.

We obtained an understanding of the Group's financial
instrument valuation policies and procedures, including
recognition and measurement of valuation adjustments.

We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls over valuation and model
approval.

We focused on the valuation methodologies and
assumptions of financial instruments that were classified as
level 2 and level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. We involved our
valuation specialists in evaluating the valuation techniques,
inputs and assumptions through comparison with the
valuation techniques that are commonly used in the market,
benchmarking of observable inputs using external market
data, comparison with valuation outcomes obtained from
various pricing sources, and performing independent
valuation for a sample of level 2 financial instruments and all
level 3 financial instruments.

We also evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Group's key controls related to
disclosures on fair value.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmvuep)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeqguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lam Yiu Wah.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 March 2025
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mEEFER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

#HZE2024F 1231 B IEFE | For the year ended December 31, 2024
(BB RIFERRSN - LABEEFITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

B 5
Note 2024 2023

FEMA Interest income 22,249,389 20,244,185
MBS H Interest expense (14,156,925) (13,697,212)
FMEWAZEEE Net interest income 11 8,092,464 6,546,973
FEERASBA Fees and commission income 1,882,888 1,707,960
FEENATIH Fees and commission expense (174,651) (156,947)
FEERMHLSWAFEE  Netfees and commission income 12 1,708,237 1,551,013
R U FEE Net trading income 13 916,239 705,052
BEBRAREBMETTAE Netlosses from financial instruments designated

HHE R T EIBAEEE  atfair value through profit or loss 14 (516,670) (17,475)
HEZE AL BESERHE Netgains from disposal of financial assets

BEE AEMEEUZ  measured at fair value through other

He R E EWE TR comprehensive income 146,187 71,178
E b g8 & WA Other operating income 15 70,187 70,330
mEIWAEEE Total operating income 10,416,644 8,927,071
KEE R Operating expenses 16 (3,167,415) (3,178,640)
RBRBETRE Operating profit before impairment losses

REREA 7,249,229 5,748,431
TEERE 1B RETIR/EEE  Net charge on expected credit losses 17 (217,580) (957,972)
R EF Operating profit 7,031,649 4,790,459
HEBFEERK Losses on disposal of fixed assets (120) -
BlEaEhERF Share of profit of joint venture 31 14,982 9,257
BB AR R Profit before taxation 7,046,511 4,799,716
| Taxation 19 (1,126,650) (795,491)
FEER Profit for the year 5,919,861 4,004,225

Mt BANAR A M ISRV B D

financial statements.

The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated
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SEETHEWER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#HZE2024F12A31BIEFE | For the year ended December 31, 2024
(BRAERIFERASN - ABEETITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2024 2023
FEERF Profit for the year 5,919,861 4,004,225
Hit 2wk Other comprehensive income
HETHEEEF I EZEEN Items that may be reclassified
HE subsequently to profit or loss:
BEAnBEFAEMEZEKEN Debt instruments measured at fair value
BB TA through other comprehensive income:
FADHERNAREBES Changes in fair value recognised
during the year 756,700 1,434,694
EABSRSBEEN YA Reclassification adjustments for amounts
transferred to profit or loss (146,187) (71,178)
RIEEEERCBEEREX Expected credit losses recognised in
profit or loss 30,548 22,450
DS Tax effect (101,748) (224,707)
HETSEHF L/ EEZEFEMER :  Item that may not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
BERZARBEFAEMEZE Equity instruments designated at fair value
Warm T : through other comprehensive income:
FAEBRN AR BEE Changes in fair value recognised during
the year 54,792 75,329
CHBRHENFEELM2EWE  Other comprehensive income for the year,
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 n e,!P,f,t,a,),(,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 594,105 1,236,588
FEZEWRSEAE Total comprehensive income for the year 6,513,966 5,240,813
Mizr B A4S B ISR MBI - The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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mEMBARRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2024412 318 | As at December 31,2024
(B RIFERRSN - LABEEFITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

B 5
Note 2024 2023
BE ASSETS
IR e MAERTT KA RIEIT Cash and balances with banks and central
ke banks 21 34,863,923 46,954,109
FHERITRUR Placements with banks 22 37,534,839 40,632,740
BARBESAEBEHZEE  Financial assets measured at fair value
ABENEHEE through profit or loss 25 4,037,977 1,906,328
WOEREEANSRERE  Financial assets held under reverse
repurchase agreements 23 - 2,023,967
TTESRT A Derivative financial instruments 28 8,024,916 1,971,341
RITER Advances to banks 24 7,305,833 265,597
TEERLESFERE Advances to customers and trade bills 24 275,688,645 259,717,847
BEAnBEGAEAHES Financial assets measured at fair value
T AH AL 2 E KA through other comprehensive income
eWMEE 26 144,765,736 128,717,611
IREE AR ARET EME M EZE  Other assets measured at amortised cost 27 722,500 1,576,306
REEDLENER Interest in a joint venture 37 1,857,162 1,856,180
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 32 534,778 633,945
& E & E Fixed assets 33 2,123,365 2,219,069
ERERE Right-of-use assets 34 1,176,550 1,302,952
Hith & & Other assets 36 3,615,584 4,079,683
EEAE Total assets 522,251,808 493,857,675
o RERLRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 (67—



EMBRRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2024412 4318 | As at December 31,2024
(B4 RIEERASN - ABEE T ITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

B 5
Note 2024 2023
=R LIABILITIES
IRITH T RNEETT Deposits and balances with banks 37 13,742,642 10,014,023
ZEER Deposits from customers 38 371,761,774 381,073,831
EEHE THERNSEIEE  Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements 39 3,425,121 9,370,572
TESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 28 6,488,813 1,331,114
HEEALAAEBESERE  Finandial liabilities designated at fair value
BEEt ABRNSHAasE through profit or loss 40 17,290,359 6,368,794
BREITEMERES Other debt securities issued 4 3,195,926 660,058
HEaE Lease liabilities 35 724,543 853,346
JE & HAFR IR Current tax payable 32 348,584 447,954
EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 17,850 18,012
HiaE Other liabilities 42 6,024,039 6,257,308
EEH5 Total liabilities 423,019,651 416,395,012
R EQUITY
& Share capital 43 28,827,843 28,827,843
HibfEm TE Other equity instruments 44 23,325,106 7,777,601
G Reserves 45 47,079,208 40,857,219
A RE Total equity 99,232,157 77,462,663
EENEEAE Total equity and liabilities 522,251,808 493,857,675

EEEeMN2025FE3 A2 B EN R o

KRB FEFKR HTEFHRTR

BT FHTEFE

B AER A SR AVERE D
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financial statements.

Non-Executive Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 21,

ZHANG Jun Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
KWOK Pui Fong Miranda Jp

The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated




GEEREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZE2024F 12831 B IEFE | For the year ended December 31,2024
(B4 RIEERASN - LA T ITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Efh k&
itz Rr  BHRIE CERE EfRE EERE HbRE  AHEE  REE EE]
Other Investment
Share equity  General revaluation Regulatory Other ~ Merger  Retained

Note capital instruments  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamings Total
R04E R1B R & Balance as at January 1, 2024 28,827,843 7,177,601 750956  (458,060) 572,887 15913 62,262 39913261 77,462,663
WUEERES - Changes n equity for 2004;
EEGT Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 5919861 5919861
E2EMNE(BEE)  Othercomprehensive income, net of tax - = - 594105 - - - - 594105
FELENGESR Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 594105 - - - 5919861 6,513,966
BIEMERIR Issuance of other equity instruments - 15,547,505 - - - - - - 15,547,505
TRHEMESZTENHZS  Coupon paid for other equity instruments - = = = = - - (291977 (291977)
EERE Requlatory reserve - - - - 180,544 - - (180,544) -
20245128310 #0148  Balance as at December 31,2024 28,827,843 23,325,106 750,956 136,045 753,431 15913 62,262 45,360,601 99,232,157
RUBEIA1RRES Balance as at January 1, 2023 28821843 7777601 75095 (1,694648) 909,600 15913 62260 35805469  725149%
WIEERES - Changes in equity for 2003;
EERA Profitfor the year - - - - - - S A0S 4004205
E2EWE(BRE)  Othercomprehensive income, net of tax - - - 1,236,588 - - - - 1,236,588
ERPENGLE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1036588 - - — 4004205 5240813
TITEMERTENHZE  Coupon paid forother equity instruments - - - - - - S (%348 (093149)
EERE Requlatory reserve - - - - 36713 - - 336713 -
R023F12 4318458 Balance as at December 31,2023 28827843 7777601 750956 (458,060) 572887 15913 62200 39913261 77462663
B ARGRE BRI AR - The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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GERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZE2024F12A31BIEFE | For the year ended December 31, 2024
(BRAERIFERASN - ABEETITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

NS
Note 2024 2023
HEEMGRY) FARIE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
EFHE operations 50(a) (24,238,453) 34,971,744
BREBENER Hong Kong Profit Tax paid (1,215,515) (460,775)
BRI Withholding tax paid (13,189) (12,453)
HEEEHMGRE) KA Netcash (outflow)/inflow from
MRS EEE operating activities (25,467,157) 34,498,516

BARAABESERESE  Purchase of financial assets measured at

FEFAEMEEKENE fair value through other comprehensive

BEE income (162,140,346) (34,271,576)
EORHERANABETTE  Proceeds received from redemption and

HE'Q‘“‘ FTAE M EmEU disposal of financial assets measured at fair

SHERMEEMMSIIE value through other comprehensive income 147,835,158 21,398,369
LEAEI) &?Zﬁﬁﬁ?@(zﬁu‘l'g Proceeds received from redemption and
R E At & EFT1S R0E disposal of other assets measured at
amortised cost 842,372 1,506,114
PN EINET -] Purchase of property and equipment 33 (141,549) (170,618)
B EERERE Dividend received from a joint venture 31 14,000 25,000
P ETRIELETEERE  Dividends received from listed and unlisted
investments 1,866 5,792
?&ﬁ}%i}] ﬁ'ﬁ};’ﬁ, .':I:.' E’SJE%}%?E _Net cash outflow from investing activities (13,588,499) (11,506,919)
YATERI AR TEMAAS Issuance of other equity instruments 15,547,505 -
ST EMERTEMNEZR Coupon paid for other equity instruments (291,977) (293,146)
HENFOAREE D Principal portion of lease payments (238,442) (237,080)
EREFEMmMAA (FRH) Netcash inflow/(outflow) from financing
m@fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁwmmwmmgcﬁtﬁingigsi 777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 15,017,086 (530,226)
RENBLEEYWORL),” (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash
$Ehn equivalents (24,038,570) 22,461,371
A1A1ENEREMRLZEY Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1 73,181,732 50,459,251
HNEE o5 A SR G B = L Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (500,037) 261,110
M12B31BWBREMIEE  Cashand cash equivalents as at
EEY December 31 50(b) 48,643,125 73,181,732
BEFEEELMNEELHRE  Cash flows from operating activities
/4 include:
FEWA Interest received 22,026,717 19,010,050
MBS H Interest paid (14,191,840) (13,305,753)
MEZHE —MHERMFEFE  Interest paid — interest portion of lease
5 payments 35 (16,786) (16,737)
M T B A 4R A B B R R AV AR 2B o The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIRERASN -
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Bl IRIT RNE281E -
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Al R EREIRIT MR & BARFS o

HE204F 12831 BILFEMNGEEY
BRERERAEBRAEEREAE
PEER - AP BIREKE 1K2025
FIANHEESSZE -

BIESHE N

RiFEMBHRRRERRBBEGFA
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AD(ESREE S MAEANEIKEE
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A ERERZEERMS &R
HEMEN  MZEFEMRABRER
£ B & AN 177 R 1 78 I BR 1E & AT AUA
EEFHENGEEMBRERA

AR FITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) is a
licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 28/F, CCB Tower,
3 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as “the Group”) are the provision of a range of banking
and related financial services through the Bank's branches and
subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2024 comprise the Group and the Group's interest in a joint
venture. The consolidated financial statements were approved by
the Board of Directors on March 21, 2025.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collectively include all individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 5 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group and the Bank for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position
in order of liquidity based on the Group’s intention and perceived
ability to recover/settle the majority of assets/liabilities of the
corresponding financial statement line item. The Group uses the
calendar year as the accounting year, which is from January 1 to
December 31.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Going concern

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis, as the directors are satisfied that the Group and parent
company have the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the directors
have considered a wide range of information relating to
present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except that: (i) financial instrument
measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL") are
measured at fair value; (i) financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") are measured
at fair value; (iii) derivative financial instruments are measured
at fair value; and (iv) the carrying values of recognised assets
and liabilities that are hedged items in fair value hedges, and
otherwise carried at amortised cost, are adjusted to record
changes in fair value attributable to the risks that are being
hedged. The measurement basis of major assets and liabilities
are further explained in Note 4.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars,
unless otherwise stated, rounded to the nearest thousand,
which is the functional currency of the Group.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conminuep)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

Judgments that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustments in the subsequent period are discussed in Note 6.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported
gross in the consolidated statement of financial position
except when HKFRS netting criteria are met.

Local regulatory reporting

In preparing the capital adequacy ratios of the Group, they are
prepared according to the basis of consolidation for regulatory
purposes. The main difference between the consolidation
basis for accounting and regulatory purposes is that the former
includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries and a joint venture
whereas the latter excludes CCB Securities Limited (“CCBS"),
CCB Nominees Limited ("CCBN”") and CCB (Asia) Trustee
Company Limited (“CCBT") which conduct non-banking related
business.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conminuep)

i BEE R E (&) (f)  Local regulatory reporting (continued)
TEEAEE RigEe EWAH Details of the subsidiaries which are not included in
BARIFBENT : consolidation for regulatory purposes are as follows:
EEAE Emam
Total assets Total equity
20245 2023 20245 20234
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H318
Name of December31, December31, December31, December 31,
DNAIEHE  company TEEHK Principal activities 2024 2023 2024 2023
BITES (RS BAITIDERE  Securities brokerage business 775,255 781416 510,028 617617
BIIREBA (BN #EER Custodian and
REARS nominees services 10,248 10,360 9,623 9,668
BOTEE (BT EEE Trustee and
TEANEHR custodian business 170,813 129,958 146,723 117,746
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Consolidated financial statements

(i)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group has the power over the activities
of the entity, and is exposed to, or has the rights to the
variable returns from its involvement with the entity,
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the
relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements. The Group is considered to control
another entity if, in addition to ongoing involvement
with the entity, it had a key role in establishing the entity
or in bringing together relevant counterparties so the
transaction that is the purpose of the entity could occur.
The Group is generally not considered to control another
entity if the only involvement with the entity is merely
administrative.

The financial results and performance of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. When preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Group makes necessary
adjustments on the accounting period and accounting
policies of subsidiaries to comply with those of the
Group.

Intragroup balances and transactions, and any profits or
losses arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(i)

(ii)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as a joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any.

Associates and joint arrangements

An associate is an enterprise in which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policy decisions.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(ii)

Associates and joint arrangements (continued)

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control. The classification of a
joint arrangement as a joint operation or a joint venture
depends upon the rights and obligations of the parties
to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control over an economic activity, and
exists only when the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing the control. The Group
has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in associates or joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements. Under the equity method, the interest in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at
cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets
of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition
date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
not tested for impairment separately.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the
Group's share of the results of operations of the associate
or joint venture. Any change in OCl of those investees
is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(ii)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Associates and joint arrangements (continued)

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of
an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss outside
operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax
and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the
associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture
are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint
venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investment
in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is
such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying
value, and then recognises the loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate
or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(b)

(c)

Translation of foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
spot exchange rates at that date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in “Net trading income”. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at historical cost are translated into functional
currency using the spot exchange rates at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
that are measured at fair value are translated using the spot
exchange rates at the dates the fair values are determined;
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as trading income, except for the
differences arising from the translation of financial instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial instruments

(i)  Initial recognition
All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position,
when and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The classification of financial instruments at initial
recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments.
Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair
value, except in the case of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at FVPL, transaction costs are added
to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are
measured at the transaction price.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
instrument at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
instrument not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
instrument. Transaction costs for financial instruments
carried at FVPL are expensed immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the
business model for managing the assets and the asset’s
contractual terms, measured at either:

Amortised cost

- FVOCI

FVPL

The Group classifies and measures its derivatives and
trading portfolios at FVPL. The Group may designate
financial instruments at FVPL, if so doing eliminates
or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies.

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and
financial guarantees, are measured at amortised cost
or at FVPL when they are held for trading or derivative
instruments or the fair value designation is applied.
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The Group measures loans and advances to banks and
customers and some debt securities at amortised cost
only if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the
principal amount outstanding.

Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level
that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective:

- The risks that affect the performance of the
business model and, in particular, the way those
risks are managed; and

- How managers of the business are compensated,
whether the compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or on the contractual
cash flows collected.

The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are
also important aspects of the Group’s assessment. The
business model assessment is based on reasonably
expected scenarios without taking “worst case” or “stress
case” scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial
recognition are realised in a way that is different from
the Group's original expectations, the Group does not
change the classification of the remaining financial assets
held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets going forward.
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4 BEAREFEE 4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuen)
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(iii)  Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
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(continued)
The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Group
assesses the contractual terms of the financial asset to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset.

The most significant elements of interest within a
lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make
the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgement and
considers relevant factors such as the currency in which
the financial asset is denominated, and the period for
which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more
than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial
asset is required to be measured at FVPL.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

Derivatives
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract
with all three of the following characteristics:

- [ts value changes in response to the change in a
specified interest rate, equity price, commodity
price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or
rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable,
provided that, in the case of a non-financial
variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract;

- It requires no initial net investment or an initial net
investment that is smaller than would be required
for other types of contracts expected to have a
similar response to changes in market factors; and

- [tis settled at a future date.

The Group enters into derivative transactions with
various counterparties. These include interest rate
swaps, currency swaps, equity swaps, foreign exchange
contracts and options on foreign currencies. Derivatives
are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their
fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value
is negative. The notional amount and fair value of such
derivatives are disclosed separately in Note 28. Changes
in the fair value of derivatives are included in “Net trading
income”. Hedge accounting disclosures are provided in
Note 29.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Derivatives (continued)

(v)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVAs") and debit
valuation adjustments ("DVAs") are applied to the
Group's OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect
market factors movement, expectations of counterparty
creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each
counterparty and are dependent on expected future
values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery
rates. For the year ended December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, the changes in the fair value of own
credit risk of financial liabilities designated at FVPL was
considered to be immaterial.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of
the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some
or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required
by the contract to be modified according to a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit
rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in
the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to
a party to the contract. A derivative that is attached to
a financial instrument, but is contractually transferable
independently of that instrument, or has a different
counterparty from that instrument, is not an embedded
derivative, but a separate financial instrument.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

Embedded derivatives (continued)

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial
asset, then the Group assesses the entire contract for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the
embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives
when:

- Their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract;

- A separate instrument with the same terms would
meet the definition of a derivative; and

- The hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.

The Group presents the structured deposits, which
contain both deposit and derivative components,
as "Financial liabilities designated at FVPL" in the
consolidated statement of financial position since they
are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.
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profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category
are those mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value under HKFRS 9 and held for trading.

The Group classifies financial assets or financial liabilities
as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit-making through
trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial
instruments that are managed together, for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit
taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded
and measured in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. Changes in fair value, interest
and dividend income or expense is recognised in “Net
Trading Income” according to the terms of the contract,
or when the right to payment has been established.

The classification of held for trading included debt
securities that have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be
measured at FVPL is recorded using the contractual
interest rate. Dividend income from equity instruments
measured at FVPL is recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “Other operating income”
when the right to the payment has been established.
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(¢ &RMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(vii) IEEURAAEEIEHEE (vii) Financial instruments designated at fair value through
Bt A BmE@M T A profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are
those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition.
Management only designates an instrument at FVPL
upon initial recognition when one of the following
criteria is met. Such designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis:

- The use of the designation removes or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch; or

- When a group of financial assets and liabilities or
a group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on the fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy; or

- The liabilities contain one or more embedded
derivatives, unless they do not significantly
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be
required by the contract, or it is clear with little
or no analysis when a similar instrument is first
considered that separation of the embedded
derivative(s) is prohibited.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at FVPL
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded
in profit or loss with the exception of movements in fair
value of liabilities designated at FVPL due to changes in
the Group’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value
are recorded in the own credit reserve through OCl and
do not get recycled to profit or loss.

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI

The Group classifies debt instruments at FVOCI when
both of the following conditions are met:

- The instrument is held within a business model, the
objective of which is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset meet
the SPPI test.

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes
in fair value recognised in OCI. Interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the same
manner as for other assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECL calculation for debt instruments at FVOCI is
explained in Note 4(c)(xv). On derecognition, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in OCl are
reclassified from OCI to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(ix)  Equity instruments designated at FVOCI

(x)

Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects
to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments
as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as “Other
operating income” when the right of the payment has
been established, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in
OCl. Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not
subject to an impairment assessment.

Letters of credit, financial guarantees and undrawn
loan commitments

The Group issues letters of credit, financial guarantees
and other credit commitments. Undrawn loan
commitments and letters of credits are commitments
under which, over the duration of the commitment, the
Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified
terms to the customer. Similar to financial guarantee
contracts, these contracts are in the scope of the ECL
requirements.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(x)

(xi)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Letters of credit, financial guarantees and undrawn
loan commitments

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees,
letters of credit and other credit commitments, where
the loan agreed to be provided is on market terms,
are not recorded on in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The nominal values of these
instruments together with the corresponding ECL
are disclosed in Note 48. Financial guarantees are
initially recognised in the financial statements (within
Provisions) at fair value, being the premium received.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liability
under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and an ECL allowance as set out in Note 48.

The premium received is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “Net fees and commission
income” on a straight line basis over the life of the
guarantee.

Financial assets held under reverse repurchase
agreements and financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements

Financial assets held under reverse repurchase
agreements are transactions where the Group
acquires financial assets which will be resold at a
predetermined price at a future date under reverse
repurchase agreements. Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements are transactions where the
Group sells financial assets which will be repurchased at
a predetermined price at a future date under repurchase
agreements.

The cash advanced or received is recognised as
amounts held under reverse repurchase or sold under
repurchase agreements in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Assets held under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised. Assets sold under
repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale
consideration, and that between the sale and repurchase
consideration, is amortised over the period of the
respective transaction using the effective interest
method and is included in interest income and interest
expense respectively.
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(0 TMIARGE) (0)
(xii) TRAEBEEFEBHEH 78

Financial instruments (continued)
(xii) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
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The Group does not reclassify its financial assets
subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires,
disposes of, or terminates a business line.

(xiii) bz T A (xiii) Other equity instruments
HENBEREEBRBEREED Securities, including Additional Tier 1 Capital instruments,
HHsKERHEMES (B which carry a discretionary coupon and have no fixed
BRI —REATER)HE maturity or redemption date are classified as “Other
BRIHMERTIE] & equity instruments”. Interest payments on these
L E SN BN RE M securities are recognised as distributions from equity in
BIFER SR DL © the period in which they are declared.

(xiv) #&IETEFR (xiv) Derecognition
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The Group derecognises a financial asset if the part being
considered for derecognition meets one of the following
conditions: (i) the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; (ii) the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset have
been transferred and the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset; or (iii) the Group retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
to the eventual recipient in an agreement that meets
all the conditions of transfer of cash flows and transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

- The Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset; or

- The Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only
if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset
in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer.
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(¢ &RIAE) (c)  Financial instruments (continued)
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(xiv) Derecognition (continued)
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When the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained
control of the asset, the asset continues to be
recognised only to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset derecognised and the consideration
received and the cumulative changes in fair value
previously recognised in investment revaluation reserve
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Any cumulative changes in fair value previously
recognised in equity investment securities designated as
FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition
but recognised in OCI.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
but retains control, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the financial asset. If the Group has not
retained control, it derecognises the financial asset and
recognises separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
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(¢ &RMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xiv) IFTER (&) (xiv) Derecognition (continued)
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The financial liability is derecognised only when: (i) the
underlying present obligation specified in the contracts
is discharged, cancelled or expired; or (i) an agreement
between the Group and an existing lender to replace the
original financial liability with a new financial liability with
substantially different terms, or a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Any cumulative changes in fair value of
financial liabilities designated under the fair value option
that are attributable to a reporting entity’s own credit
risk are recognised in OCl and these amounts are not
transferred to profit or loss upon derecognition.
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(¢ &EMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
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(xv) Impairment of financial assets
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The Group recognises expected credit losses ("ECL") for
loans and advances to banks and customers, non-trading
reverse repurchase agreements, other financial assets
held at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, and certain
loan commitments and fin